DOCUMENT RESOME

ED 193 230

SP 016 888

AUTHOR
TITLE
INSTITUTION
PUB DATE
NOTE

Rhoades, Lynn: Rhoades, George Teaching With Newspapers: The Living Curriculum. Phi Delta Kappa, Bloomington, Ind.

Nov 80 37p.

AVAILABLE FRCM Phi Delta Kappa, 8th and Union, P.O. Box 789,

Bloomington, IN, 47402 (\$.75).

EDRS PRICE DESCRIPTORS MF01 Plus Postage. PC Not Available from EDRS.
Art Education: *Class Activities: *Curriculum
Development: *Educational Resources: Elementary
Secondary Education: Health Education: Home
Economics: Language Arts: Mathematics Instruction:
Music Appreciation: *Newspapers: *Program
Development: Science Instruction: Social Studies:

Textbocks

ABSTRACT

Daily newspapers may be used to broaden and enrich the curriculum in both elementary and secondary schools in a variety of ways. The newspaper can be useful in strengthening skills in the language arts and in the social studies and contains information relevant to students of all ages and levels of ability. The variety of topics a newspaper covers makes it possible to individualize learning assignments. Activities for elementary students include developing language arts, social studies, art activities, music, health, science, and mathematics. Secondary level students can tenefit from practical application of information obtained from the newspaper as well as from learning possibilities offered by the coverage of current topics in the world, historical perspectives, and world problems. (JD)







GEORGE RHOADES

Lynn Rhoades is an assistant professor in the School of Education. Texas Christian University. She received her bachelor's and master's degrees from the University of Oklahoma, and her doctorate in curriculum development and supervision from Utah State University. She has taught English at the junior high, high school, and university levels. She now supervises student teachers at TCU in addition to teaching classes, one of which is a graduate course called The Newspaper in Education. She is author of a number of education articles, including several on using the newspaper in the classroom.

George Rhoades has been a reporter for United Press International and is a former city editor on various weekly and daily newspapers in Oklahoma. His degrees, including the doctorate in mass communication/higher education, are from Oklahoma State University. Rhoades is an assistant professor of journalism at the University of Texas at Arlington. He has conducted workshops for gifted children in grades 4 through 8 in which the children produced their own newspapers under his supervision.

ERIC Full Text Provided by ERIC

Series Editor, Derek L. Burleson

Teaching with Newspapers: The Living Curriculum

By Lynn Rhoades and George Rhoades

Library of Congress Cacalog Card Number: 80-82682 ISBN 0-87367-149-X Copyright ⁶ 1980 by the Phi Deha Kappa Educational Foundation Bloomington, Indiana



This fastback is sponsored by the Stevens Point Wisconsin Chapter and the Wisconsin's Headwaters Chapter of Phi Delta Kappa, which made a generous financial contribution toward publication costs.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

The Newspaper and Education	6
Rationale for Newspapers in the Classroom	8
How to Begin	0
The Newspaper in the Elementary Curriculum	j
Language Arts 1	I
Elemetitary Social Studies	6
Elementary Art Activities	7
Elementary Music I	7
Elementary Health	ä
Elementary Science 1	ð
Elementary Mathematics 1	
The Newspaper in the Secondary Curriculum	1
Secondary English	
Secondary History-Government	
Secondary Art Activities 2	
Home Economics Activities 2	
Secondary Science Activities 2	
Secondary Mathematics Activities	
Newspaper in Education (NIE) Program	2
Recommended Resources	3



The Newspaper and Education

That great humorist, Will Rogers, used to tell his audiences, "All I know is what I lead in the newspapers."

Will Rogers would be surprised today to see just how much one can learn from the newspaper. The modern newspaper carries a vast array of news and information from around the world. It is packed with features and columns, opinion and think pieces, photographs and artwork, and stories of interest to all types of readers.

The newspaper is one of the most readily available and highly motivating resources for teaching at all levels. More than 3,000,000 youngsters and 90,000 teachers in 16,000 schools are using the newspaper as an instructional tool in almost every area of the curriculum. And the numbers are growing every year.

There are some classrooms where the newspaper is the basic text. More often, however, it is used as a supplementary resource. In the inner city, suburbs, small towns, and rural areas teachers are reporting enthusiastically how the newspaper can be an effective learning coolin reading, science, social studies, mathematics, and many other curricular areas.

There remain, however, literally thousands of teachers who are not aware of the potential the newspaper has for the curriculum. It is for these teachers that this fastback has been written. It contains hundreds



of specific activities using the resonates of the newspaper. They can be used at both the elementary and secondary school levels.

For those reachers who are already making some use of the newspaper in their classrooms, hopefully, there will be some new activities here that they will want to try. For those reachers who are looking for new ideas and activities to enrich the learning experiences of children and youth, we invite them to peruse the sections that follow to learn how the newspaper can become an indispensable tool of instruction.



78

Rationale for Newspapers in the Classroom

The newspaper deals with what is happening in the wurld outside the classroom. It provides information students can use in their daily lives. For example, it tells students where to find jobs and where to huy a used car. It gives them tips on cooking and fashions: it tells them about sports and recreation opportunities.

The newspaper has something to contribute to almost all areas of the curriculum. It cuntains information relevant to students of all ages and ability levels. It is especially useful in strengthening skills in the language arts and the social studies. The variety of topics a newspaper tovers makes it possible to individualize learning assignments.

Being familiar with the news enables students to engage in adult tonversations, thereby opening up communication between them and their parents. The newspaper is frequently the only reading material that parents discuss with their children.

The appeal of a newspaper can motivate many students to read who do not respond to traditional instructional materials. It gets them started reading about subjects in which they are interested. Even so-called nonreaders sometimes turn out to be readers when they find material that interests them.

It is important that students understand the vital role the free press plays in our democratic society. Since informed participation is essential to the survival of a free society, the school should help students become intelligent readers of newspapers by teaching them how to interpret newspaper content critically.



υυ΄ ⁸ 9

Newspapers are a readily accessible and economical resonate for teaching. Some publishers provide free copies to schools; others offer copies at special rates.

Texthooks can be as dated as yesterday. The information is often two years old by the time texthooks are published. And once adopted by a school system, they are used for a period of years, thus becoming even more outdated. For many areas of the curriculum teachers need more up-to-date materials. The newspaper, which is written anew each day, offers a living curriculum. It only remains to be used. Let us show you how.



10

How to Begin

Arrange for newspapers to be delivered to your school each morning. Have a newspaper for each child if possible, so that stodents can eliptems from the paper and can take their own copies home.

If your local newspaper poblisher does not furnish free copies or your school budget does not permit you to purchase one for each sto-dem, try to get enough for half the students and let them work in pairs. Or, get enough papers for your largest class and use these throughout the day. Another possibility when there are budget restrictions is to order the newspaper for a shorter period than for the entire year.

And if your school budget will not allow the porchase of any newspapers for your students, you still can do many of the activities described in this fastback by elipping items from one copy of the newspaper. Then reproduce for your students such items as news stories, editorials, editorial carroons, letters to the editor, weather maps. TV schedules, comic strips, classified ads, etc.

Each sindent will need a notebook in which to paste newspaper clippings and possibly another notebook or a folder in which to maintain a file on an individual topic. Articles clipped can be used for oral and written reports.

"Find and list" may be substituted for any of the "clip and paste" directions in the following activity suggestions.

For purposes of this fastback, activities are divided into elementary and secondary levels. There is, of course, some overlap, and many of the activities can be adjusted to the ability level of particular students.



The Newspaper in the Elementary Curriculum

Newspapers are ideal for such activities as coloring, underlining, dipping, pasting, and storytelling—all of which may contribute to learning skills of reading, thinking, oral communication, writing, and manual descrity.

Some youngsters can work with the whole newspaper, some with just one section, some with just one page. Younger children will be able to handle the paper better if you staple the edge of each section to keep it from falling apart.

In this fastback the activities designed for the elementary child have been arranged by subject matter and by level of dilliculty. Thus, in the language arts section we begin with pictures, which the child can work with prior to being able to read or write. We progress to letters of the alphabet. Next we work with words or word games in preparation for writing sentences and paragraphs. Grammar artivities follow, and finally there are activities on writing headlines and news stories. The teacher can, of course, move at will among these activities, using those for which the students are ready.

Language Arts

Students will need a notebook in which to do their newspaper activities. The words "Newspaper Notebook" can be printed on the from, or these letters can be clipped from the newspaper and pasted on



the cover. Students can add drawings or pictures to make an attractive cover.

Picture Activities

- Choose a picture or curroon from the newspaper to color and explain to the class. Make up a story about a picture.
- Clip pictures to make individual or class notebooks on particular pics such as animals, birds, flowers, sports, occupations, or famous persons.
- 3. Find pictures (or words) that are happy, sad, or show action. Paste these on a page with an appropriate heading at the top.
- Glip and paste pictures of things (or words) that rhyme, Another page can have pictures of things that begin with retrain sounds or end with them.
- 5. Label different colored sheets of construction paper (or pages in the notebook) with the headings Living Room, Dining Room, Kitchen. Bedroom. Yard. Clip pictures of household objects and paste them on the correct chart. Other categories for picture charts are Toys for Babies, Toys for Young Children, and Toys for Older Children.
- 6. Change the classroom bulletin board each day, using pictures and articles from the newspaper.

Alphabet Activities

- I. Label sheets of paper A, B, C, etc. Find pictures of objects that wait with these letters and paste them on the right page.
- 2. On a page in your notebook, paste one word that starts with each letter of the alphabet. The first one through is the winner.
- 3. Find the names of fruits and vegetables in a grocery ad and paste them in alphabetical order.
 - 4. Alphabetize the names of comic strips.

Working with Words Activities

- 1. Find the compound words in a news story, Draw a line between the two parts of the words. Examples: viory book, foor ball, dog house. (Students can work in pairs for this activity.)
- 2. Take a paragraph or two of a news story and see how many little words you can find in the big words. Example: In the word *gathering*, you find these words: gather, at, the, her, ring, in.
 - 3. Find words that illustrate phonic rules that the class is working



on. Examples: words that have long and short vowels in them, words that end in silent e, and words that end in silent e, and words with st sounds or other consonant blends with which children are having difficulty.

- 4. Find words to which you could add er and est.
- Make charts labeled Seeing, Hearing, Smelling, Tasting, and Feeling. Find words in the newspaper that pertain to these senses and write them on the correct chart.
- 6. Draw a line down the middle of a sheet of paper. Label the left column Prefixes and the right column Suffixes. Find words with prelixes and suffixes from the newspaper and write them in the cornect column.
- 7. Find as many abbreviations as you can on a page of the newspaper. Write what the letters stand for.
- 8. Name Game. Take the letters of your first name. Find words in the paper that begin with these letters and describe you. Clip these words and paste them onto chart. If you wish, draw a self-portrait on the chart. A variation of this activity is a What I'd Like to Be chart. Look for words starting with the letters of your name that describe what you would like to be.
- 9. Get in the Picture. Clip and paste a picture from the newspaper. Complete these sentences: If I were in this picture. I could see I could hear I could smell I could taste I could touch
- 10. TV Quiz. Students work together in pairs. Pick out a TV personality. Find at least five words or phrases on the front page that could describe the person of what he or she does. Let the class guess who the person is. Example: large, temper, frightening, cau't talk, torn shirt. Answer; The Incredible Hulk.
- 11. Making Movies. Use synonyms to make new citles for movie ads in the entertainment section. Examples: Fantastic Voyage (Incredible Trip); Heaven Can Wait (Paradise Delayed); The Cheap Detective (Inexpensive Private Eye). Students can work in pairs.
- 12. Watching TV. Have small groups use the TV schedule in the newspaper to plan the best programs to watch from 6 p.m. to 9 p.m. on a given day. Let one person from each group defend the choices.
 - 13. Paste-Up Poetry. Find words in headlines and ads that seem to



jump out at you because of the size of type or style of type or because they have special meaning for you. Paste them on a sheet of paper in a way that is meaningful and attractive. Sindents can then read their paste-up poems to the class and interpret them.

Writing Activities

- 1. Find 10 words in the newspaper that you do not know. List each one, copy the definition from the dictionary, and write a sentence using the new word.
- 2. List 10 names from the from page of the newspaper. Identify each person and write one to three sentences telling why he or she is in the news.
 - 3. Clip pictures and stories about accidents and write tips on safety.
- 4. Clip and paste a picture of a food, and see if you can make up the recipe for this food. Write your recipe beside the picture.
- 5. Select a per from the classified ads. Write a paragraph telling why you chose this particular pet.
- Find a picture in the newspaper with two or more people in it.
 Write a short description of these people.
- 7. Write a letter ordering something from a picture ador a classified ad.
- 8. Hall of Fame and Hall of Shame, Clip newspaper articles that would make people proud to be in the story or that would make them ashamed to be in the story. Write a paragraph telling why people would feel this way.
- Write personal letters to people in the news—emertainers, politicians, sports figures, and others.
- 10. Write a fetter to an out-of-state child who is moving to your city.
 Tell your friend about the town, using only information you find in the newspaper.
- 11. Comic Strips. a) Discuss favorite comic strips and decide which ones come closest to representing real-life situations. b) After seeing three frames of a comic strip, write what would happen in the fourth frame. The teacher can then show what happened in the original strip. c) Remove the dialogue in the balloons in a comic strip. Write new dialogue, d) Individually or in groups, invent, write, and illustrate your own comic strip.



"15

Grammar Activities

- 1. In a given newspaper an ir le, underline various parts of speech in different colors.
 - 2. Rewrite a news story, substituting synonyms for each noun.
- 3. IPhoduntiff Underline the words he, she, it, and they in a news story. Draw an arrow back to the word to which each pronoun refers.
 - 1. Rewrite an advertisement by changing all the adjectives.
- 5. Perh Contest. See who can find the most verby in a news story. Do the same with other parts of speech.
- 6. Paste present-tense verhs from a newspaper article in your note-book. Write the verhim the past tense or write a sentence using the past tense of the verb.

News Stary Activities

- 1. Write new headlines for news stories.
- 2. Clip and paste in your northook three news stories. Beside each story identify the who, what, when, where, why, and how of the story.
- 3. Clip and paste a news story. Beside each paragraph tell the main idea of that paragraph in a semence of five words or fewer.
- Clip and pasie a news article. Alongside, write the article in your own words.
- 5. The teacher reads a news article while the students listen. Students then write down everything they remember. The object is to see if they can identify the five Ws and H (who, what, when, where, why, and how) of news story writing. Some students can read their lists to the class, and the rest of the class can challenge answers. This is a listening exercise that can be repeated periodically.
- Have students participate in class discussions or panel discussions on topics in the news. A news story could be written about that discussion.
- 7. Assign each student to read a news story and write some questions on it. See if the class our answer these questions after reading the stories.
- 8. Assign older students to select an appropriate story and then tessifie it in simple words and short sentences so that a first-grader can read it.



1.665

- Individually or in groups, write a radio newscast based on today's newspaper stories.
- 10. Goofsville Gazette. Have groups of students make up a front page with many kinds of errors. The groups can then exchange pages with each other to see if they can find the mistakes.

Elementary Social Studies

Geography

- See who can find the most geographical terms (river, ntountain, desert, lake, etc.) on the front page of the newspaper. Write these terms in your notebook.
- 2. Who can find the most countries and the most capital cities mentioned in the day's news? Locate these cities and countries of the map or globe. Tell why each is in the news.
 - 3. Find articles about crops grown in your area.
- 4. Clip pictitres and stories about whatever country or area the class is studying. Use these stories for oral and written reports.
- 5. Be the Expert. Pick a country and make a notebook about it. For each article you clip, write a one-paragraph summary. At the end of each week, write a brief summary of the week's news in your area. Report periodically to the class.

People and Events

- 1. Before class the teacher lists 10 or more questions covering news throughout the paper. Put these on the blackboard or overhead projector and let students locate the answers. (Some newspapers publish such a quiz in each issue.)
- 2. Who's Who! Ask students to pick the name of a prominent person in the news and give the class some class about the person—what country he or she comes from, why he or she is in the news. The class then tries to find the name of the person.
- 3. Meet the Press. Have mock interviews with people in the news. Some students can role play the important people and the other students role play reporters asking them questions.
- 4. Make a scrapbook on a subject such as Our City, Our State, The President, Political Leaders, Famous Persons, A Foreign Country, or A



Current Event. Clip articles on the subject for several seeks, then make an oral report to the class that summarizes the topic. Students may also prepare a switten report.

- 5. The Top Ten. Keep a file of important newspaper stories. Ask the class to pick the top story of the week, then the top story of the month. Decide which, if any, of these stories might be mentioned in history brooks 25 years from now and 100 years from now.
- Clip and save headlines for a week. On Friday give one to early student with instructions to write a news atory based on that headline.
- 7. Assign students to follow certain candidates for public office and to give periodic reports on their catdidate's progress.
- 8. Make a tadio news broadcast. These can be regularly scheduled news programs in which each sundent is assigned a responsibility for a particular ropic. The programs can be broadcast on the school P.A. system. If your school has videorape equipment, a TV news program can be recorded and shown at a later time.

Elementary Art Activities

- 1. Make newspaper picture notebooks on a subject of the students' clinice. Particularly good news photos may also be used for bullerin boards or "art exhibits." Extrach child pick a favorite picture, mount it artiactively, and then display it on the wall of the room.
- Select a large ad and rell why people might take notice of it. What would they like or not like? Older children can design ads.
- 3. Clip a recipe and paste it in your notebook. Draw a picture to show what the prepared food would look like.
- Choose a human innerest news story and draw a picture to illustrate it.
- Draw frames of your lavorine comic strip to the style of the original artist.
- Older students might design relitorial carroons based on a news event or personality.

Elementary Music

 Use newspaper clippings to make bulletin boards or notebooks of musical instruments, musicians, recordings, concerts, different types of music, etc.



18 17

- Select appropriate background music for use with oral reputs or news broadcasts.
- Write an original song based on a story in the news and then perform it for the class.

Elementary Health

- 1. Make a halletin board on good posture using newspaper photos of people with good and poor pasture.
- 2. Make a sports fulletin hoard with news photos of spirits activities. Have students write a one-paragraph description of the sport and post it under the photo.
- 3. Make a hullerin hoard on muritious foods using the articles and pictures that you find in the newspaper.
- Plan mutuitions means based on the food section features of the week.
- 5. Clip and fife articles for health and safety hullerin boards and northooks or lor oral and written reports. Possifile subjects include good health practices, medicine, first aid tips, water safety, fire and accident prevention, exercise, bicycle and automobile safety, smoking, alcohol, drugs, pollution, and mental health.

Elementary Science

- Keep a list of vocalidary words found in newspaper science stories. Write the definition von find in the dictionary.
 - 2. Make a bulletin board of famous people in science.
- 3. Clip and paste articles in a notebook about an outstanding scientist in the news, new inventions, a specific disease, surgical techniques, weather control, pollution, explorations in otter space, rec. Write brief summaries of the articles and report to the class.
- 1. Study newspaper weather maps and weather stories. Make predictions about weather for the next day and the next week.

Elementary Mathematics

- Connecte manter of people or objects in a picture.
- 2. Label sheets of paper 4 through 10. Paste a newspaper picture of our object outpage 1, pictures of two objects on page 2, pictures of three objects on page 3, etc.



- Circle in one color all the even numbers in a newspaper article or adven isculent. Circle odd numbers in another color.
- See who can find the largest marber on a newspaper page in one minute.
- 5. Select a complete outfit to wear from the ads in the newspaper, Clip and paste pictures of your outfit and list the cost of each item. What is the total cost of the outfit?
- Select the most expensive outfit to wear from today's newspaper ads. Clip and pash these items and prices, and tell the class how much you would have to pay.
- 7. You have \$50 to spend in 30 minutes. Clip and paste on a paper the pictures and prices of the things you would buy. How much change do you have left?
- 8. Scleen five to 10 items from the newspaper that you would like to own. Figure the cost, Older students can add the state sales tax,
- From a newspaper grocery store ad, the teacher lists 10 items on the blackboard. Have students clip and pasie the pictures and prices of these nems and figure the total grocery bill.
- 10. From newspaper ads find new furniture you would like to have for your room at home. Clip and paste the pictures and total the cusi.
- 11. Clip pictures and prices of 10 items on sale in a store's "sale" ad. Figure the difference between the regular price and the sale price. Older students can determine the percent of savings.
- 12. Give students the price per word and per day for classified ads. Figure the cost of running various ads for one day, three days, or a week.
 - 13. Figure the average daily temperature for the week.
- 14. Find a job in the classified adsection that names a salary. Figure the amount paid by the hour, day, week, month, and year.
- 15. Paste a recipe from the newspaper on one side of a page in your notebook. Beside it, rewrite the recipe, using one-fourth or one-half of the ingredients.
- 16. Clip and paste food ads that give the price per pound. Figure the price for three, four, and five pounds. More advanced students can determine the price of $1\!-\!1\!-\!3$, $3\!-\!1\!-\!2$, or $4\!-\!3\!-\!4$ pounds.
- 17. The teacher suggests an amount of money as down payment on a car or house advertised in the newspaper. Figure the balance due and



the amount regaled for monthly payments over a period of three of four years for a rar or 30 years for a house.

18. Take figures and statistics given in a newspaper article (perhaps in a sports story), and make a fine, bar, or pie graph to illustrate them.

19. Use an imaginary \$1,000 to buy stock in one or more companies. Follow the stock reports daily for gains and losses. Figure percentages of profit and loss. Construct a graph to show these.

20. Practice changing all types of measurements in news stories to mercic equivalents.



The Newspaper in the Secondary Curriculum

The daily newspaper is a rich resource for many areas of the secondary curritulum. Using the newspaper in the classroom puts students in touch with topics of adult conversation and raises issues about adult problems they will soon be facing. Speaking and writing assignments based on news stories take on new importance since they require understanding of and communicating about significant ideas from the adult world, and math takes on a new relevance for the student figuring but how to support a household.

Most secondary students are becoming increasingly concerned with their futures and want the "real" information the newspaper provides about college, careers, available jobs, housing, and automobiles. They are beginning to think about homes and families of their own and want information on family life, child care, food preparation, nutrition, budgets, health, and safety.

Adolescents are beginning to wonder what kind of world they will live in for the rest of their lives. What scientific findings will affect their daily patterns of life? They are concerned with their future responsibility as citizens. They wonder if they will be able to understand what is happening in government and in foreign relations. They wonder if they will understand the political issues in order to vote intelligently.

As they gradually move into the adult world, these students are, at the same time, concerned with the typical problems and interests of



adolescence: appearance, making biends, dating, wearing the latest fashions, doing whatever is "in," and being able to discuss the latest hit records, movies, and spons events with their friends.

The dewypaper can provide a living curriculum that serves all of these special needs and innerests of youth.

Secondary English

General Activities

- Find words in the newspaper that the students' guart grandpaceurs would not know, such as waterbed, microwave, steel-belted radials, en.
- 2. Analyze the TV schedule from the newspaper. Categorize programs (ander various headings: news, documentaries, lamily, police detective, westerns, comedies, children's programs, war, sports, ralk shows, scap operas, movies, etc. (Some programs may be listed in more than one category.) Decide which categories receive the most TV time.
- Prepare a report giving prices and descriptions of this year's amomobiles based on information you find in the newspaper.
- 4. Write a short story about a news article. Do turn change the facts in the story, but you may add descriptions of characters and setting and dialogue.
- Collect arricles and adviront the newspaper about a particular occupation. Write a short paper about the education and training required, valury, and advantages and disadvantages of the job. Report to the class.
- 4). List the 10 values you consider most important. Clip stories from the newspaper for one week that illustrate these values. The class rate then compare lists to see how values are reflected in human events.
- 7. Dentify one or more ethnic groups. Find acticles and advinction messpaper showing contributions those groups have made to American culture—foods, cluding, masic, language. Write a report on these contributions.
 - 8. Write a book review or movie review for the newspaper.
- What clies would the entertainment section of the newspaper give to someone from another planer who did not know anything about earth people? Justify your answers using the newspaper.



Advertising Activities

- Write a classified ad for semertring that would be difficult to sell, such as a piano with no black keys, a book without a cover, or a pair of filter icons with three legs.
 - 2. Write a classified ad for your million-dollar dream home.
- Write a letter applying for a jub listed in the paper, Role play the interview for the job, with another student serving as the personnel mattager.
- d. Clip and paste in your newspaper nucleook at least one ad based on each of these basic appeals; adventure, ambition, appearance, economy, health, loxury, safery, sex, and vanity,
- Study newspaper advertisements to find examples of exaggerations, misleading statements, or unsupported claims, Look for these propaganda techniques;
 - a. Band leagon. Everybody's in favor of it; join the crowd.
- Plain folks, The users of this product are simple, down-to-earth people like you and me.
 - c. Gard stacking. Distarting or amitting facts, telling half-trialis.
 - d. Name-calling. Sterroryping ideas or people with a bad tabel.
- e. Glattering generalities. Using "good" labels, such as democratic, parriotic, amazing, beautiful, and exciting, that are unsupported by facts.
- f. Testimonial. Seeking support for an idea or product by having it endorsed by a famous person, such as a sports figure or movie or TV star.
- g. Snob appeal, Only the richest, most important, or most discerning people like this idea or product.
- In *Transfer*. Associating a respected person or idea with whatever is being promoted, such as pictoring a well-known athlete in a breakfast cereal advertisement.
- 6. Clip and paste in your newspaper notebook examples of ads directed to persons of various ages, income levels, and ethnic groups. Explain your choices by referring to price, language, type of appeal, and propaganda techniques.
- Sefect what you consider to be effective and ineffective advand compare them with regard to size, visual appeal, language, good teste, and persuasiveness. Rewrite objectionable or ineffective ads.



- As a group assignment, write an advertising code for acceptable and macrepodde advertising.
- 9. Individuals or small groups insert a product and plan an adsertising campaign for that product, writing and designing ads for newspaper, cadio, relectision, and billboard. Share ads with the class. Then some on who insented the best product and who created the best adsertising campaign.

News Stury Activities

- Clip and paste in your newspaper notebook three articles each day and list the who, what, when, where, why, and how for each article. Articles should be taken from different sections of the newspaper.
- 2. Pick three interesting pictures from the day's newspaper, Relaction in some way and write a story or a tall tale. Show your three pictures to the class and read your story or tall tale.
- 3. Write headlines for historic events. See if the class can guess the event from your heaffline.
- Find five examples of interesting headlines. Find five examples
 of mislisoling headlines.
- 5. Select one story from each of the following sections of the newspaper: general news, lustiness, entertainment, sports, and family of women's news. Write the main idea of each story in one sentence. Explain how the story pertains to you.
- 6. Write new headlines for all the stories on the from page. Write new leads for three of these stories.
- 7. Write your own obitingly for the newspaper based on what you think the events of your foture life might be.
- Write a news story about something that is happetting or has happetted in our of your classes.

Feature Story Activities

- Examine feature stories to find words that convey values or entotions.
- 2. Write a feature story about a classmate, a school event, or a cutrent event.
- 3. Write letters to Ann Landers and exchange them with classmores. Answer the letters in the Ann Landers style.



Editorial Writing Activities

- 1. Compare a news viory and an editorial on the same subject. Consider senience viruciane, last vs. opinion, and rone of the article.
 - 2. Find examples of editorializing (blus) in news stories.
- Collect editorials for one week or longer. Underline facts in ted and opinions in blue.
- 4. Read an editorial and then write a response staring why it did or did not change your opinion.
 - 5. Choose a news mary and write an editorial based on it.
- ii. Write air editorial milizing some of the propaganda redinkpres described in the Advertising section on page 25.
- 7. Study the editorials and columnists on the editorial page and determine whether there is a balance of opinion. List topics discussed and identify which refrorials are pro and which are con.
- 8. Look over the stories on the front page of the newspaper, Guess which topic the editorial caroon will be about. Turn to the editorial page of see if you are correct. Do this for one week and see if your guess-work improves.
 - 9. Make an editorial carroon about a story on the front page.

Interpretative News Story Activities

- 1. Find an in-depth news story involving different viewpoints. The story may be local or national. Explain who holds each viewpoint and possible reasons for each opinion.
- Evalue an in-depth news story as to balance of opinion. Are all sides presented? Who else should have been interviewed for the story?
- 3. Find news stories that a fonger, more thorough story could be written about. Expand one of the stories by interviewing other persons and gening other information and opinions.

The English reacher may find useful activities in the other subject areas that follow, since all of these activities help to develop language skills.

Secondary History-Government

 Individual or class files can be compiled by clipping newspaper arricles on subjects such as crime, pollution, uneraployment, energy sources. Cabiner members, etc. These clippings can be used for oral and



26

written reports, panel discussions, and debates.

- 2. Choose a current event to follow in the newspaper over a period of four to six weeks. Write a paragraph each week summarizing the important actions connected with the current event. At the end of the project, report major happenings to the class and discuss the causes of the problem, who is right and wrong, and possible solutions.
- 3. Find itemspaper stories that discuss the duries of ritizens, such as voting, paying taxes, observing traffic laws. Find other examples of things that signify a good citizen, such as volunteer work, charitable contributions, and membership in service organizations.
- 4. Clip articles from the newspaper about local or city officials. Write one or two sentences explaining the job of each official.
- 5. Find newspaper articles that give examples of services provided by the government. Decertains which of these are performed by city, county, state, or federal governments.
- Choose the five most important problems discussed in the day's paper. Propose a solution for at least one of them.
- 7. For a group activity pick newspaper articles and photos to be put into a time capsule that will be opened in the year 2.980. The items selected should attempt to provide the future reader with a representative view of corrent times.
- 8. Stronp the Expert. This game is played by the class asking one student (the "expert") questions from the day's newspaper. The student remains the expert until he or she is stumped by a question. Then the student who asked that question becomes the expert.
- 9. For one week clip newspaper articles that involve the President. Summorize and evaluate his actions and statements. Then choose a student to role play the President during a news conference. Other students can be the reporters who ask the questions.
- 10. Find newspaper articles on on issue before Congress. Decide which way you would like Congress to vote. Write an editorial or a letter to your representative or scuator in support of your decision.
- 11. Make a list of freedoms guaranteed by the U.S. Constitution. Find newspaper stories relating to these freedoms. Find newspaper stories that show which of these Constitutional freedoms are tacking in foreign countries.



- 12. Make a newspaper notebook on world-leaders. Choose the best leader and the worst, and explain your choices.
- 13. Clip quotations by world leaders from the newspaper for a period of several weeks. Then choose those quotations that might become famous and tell why you chose them.
- 14. Find all the stories that might be censored in the newspaper if this country had a dictator instead of elected officials. Which stories would be left out or censored, and why?
- 15. Assign students to represent a country in a classroom United Nations. Have students do research on their country from the newspaper and prepare a written report on its policies. The class (the General Assembly) can then debate a current topic and vote on resolutions presented.

Secondary Art Activities

- 1. Clip items from the newspaper to make attractive posters, collages, or mobiles,
- 2. Collect examples of different styles of newspaper type and paste these in your nuebook. Practice lettering in the different styles.
 - 3. Design a new style of type,
- 4. Design a trademark for a product and the packaging for the product.
- 5. Copy newspaper pictures of fashions, automobiles, animals, people, etc.
 - 6. Design illustrated ads.
 - 7. Draw original cartoons and comic strips.

Home Economics Activities

- 1. Find examples of newspaper ads offering a variety of services for the home. How many different services are available?
- 2. Write 10 "Help Warned" ads forhome and classroom chores. Attempt to make undesirable duties sound interesting and enjoyable.
- 3. Clip and pasie pictures and articles about clothing. Report on current fashions. Predict fashions for next year.
- 4. Clip articles on teenage friendships. Write a brief summary and reaction to the information. Report to the class.
 - Collect examples of different types of recipes from the news-



paper. Write a hijef evaluation of the ones you my. Rate them with one to four stars.

- Clip newspaper articles on problems of raising children. Discuss solutions to problems. Use this information to write a page of tips for babysitters.
- 7. Give students a shopping list with instructions to find each item in a grocery ad. Have students list each item, the price, and the store at which it is available. See who can "buy" all of the items from the newspaper for the least amount of money.
- 8. Clip furniture ads to furnish a six-room house. Figure the cost of furniture for each room and the total cost of furnishing the house. Draw a floor plan for each room of the house. Show how you would arrange the futniture. (Alternative: The teacher may specify an amount per room and have students try to stay within the limit.)
- Use newspaper ads to figure the cost of carpeting each room or puning finoleum or tile in each room,
- 10. Clip and pasie articles on foods and murition, Alongside each one, write a summary in a few sentences.
- 11. Clip and paste a recipe from the newspaper that you would like to make. Using food ads, determine how much it would cost you to buy the juggedients to prepare the recipe.
- 12. Find a restaurant ad that comains a dinner menu including prices. Using lood ads, figure the amount that you would pay if you bought the ingredients and prepared the dinner yourself.
- 13. Plan a muritions weekly menu using newspaper recipes and ads. Determine the cost.
- 14. Make a month's budget for a married couple who have just graduated from high school and are both working. Use classified job ads to determine their probable income. Then budget for food, housing, utility bills, clothing, entertainment, miscellaneous, and savings.

For other home economics activities, see the secondary mathematics section of this fastback,

Secondary Science Activities

 Students can keep newspaper notebooks on topics such as new drugs and antibiotics, carthquakes, tornadoes, the oceans and seas,



28 🗻

deserts, glaciers, rocks and minerals, fossils, erosion, soil, water, crops, forests, wildlife, etc. Add to this information with Jibrary research. Make oral and written reports to the class.

- 2. Using newspaper clippings, make a bulletin board on "Who's Who in Science."
- 3. Clip stories or ads for products that were anknown 25 years ago. Advanced students can identify scientific discoveries that led to the new products.
- Study the weather forecasts in the newspaper for one week. Then
 write your own forecast for the following week based on the data in the
 forecasts.
- 5. Using your newspapers develop a vocabulary list of technical terms on space (light.
- 6. Clip newspaper articles on pollution and determine causes, effects, and possible solutions.
- 7. Find articles on existing energy sources and possible future sources. Make an oral or written report on this information.

Secondary Mathematics Activities

- Find as many symbols, abbreviations, numerals, and words relating to mathematics as you can find in the first five pages of the day's newspaper.
- 2. Give students a budget and let them do Christmas shopping for an imaginary family by clipping newspaper ads. Tell them how many people are in the family.
- 3. The teacher furnishes a list of 10 or 20 commodities, such as a dozen eggs, a pound of bacon, a loaf of bread, etc. Students compare prices from different store ads to see where they can get the best price on each item. The object of the activity is to see who can buy everything on the list but spend the least amount of money. It helps to set up a chart for this purpose, using the headings Item, Price at Store No. 1, Price at Store No. 2, Price at Store No. 3, etc. Circle the lowest price for each item on the chart. Then find the total cost of all these "bargains." Also total the vertical columns to get the total price you would pay if you bought all of the items at Store No. 1, all at Store No. 2, or all at Store No. 3. Figure the percent of savings at the store with the lowest prices.



3 B

- 4. Clip newspaper coupous for free items or discounts on products. Total your savings, Who can save the most?
- 5. Identify the most expensive and the least expensive automobiles advertised in the day's newspaper.
- Figure the rost of transportation, housing accommodations, food, and entertainment for various varation spots hased on ads in the newspaper.
- Figure the hours of daylight over a period of time by using the times of sourise and souser. Make a graph to show the daily changes.
- 8. Find 15 classified ads for homes for sale in a certain area of town. Clip and paste these in your newspaper notebook. Figure the average cost of a home in that area.
- 9. Clip and paste classified ads for 15 apartments for rent in a vertain area. What is the average rent?
- Find the average salary in a particular job category advertised in the classified section.
- 11. Identify a job in the warnads that lists the salary. Figure the takehome pay after the following items are taken out: 6% for social scentity, 20% for income tax. \$15 monthly for hospitalization, and 10% for a savings plan.
- 12. a) Divide a page of your notebook into four sections labeled Eighth Grade. Twelfth Grade, Junior College, College, h) Find a classified ad showing the best-paying job you think you could get with each amount of education. Paste the four ads in the appropriate sections, () Consider the salary you found in the four ads and find classified ads for an apartment you think you could afford to rent at the four salary levels. Paste these ads under the appropriate sections, d) Find an ad for the best car you could afford at the four salary levels. Paste these als under the appropriate sections.
- 13. Pretend you have \$100,000 in the stock market in at least five different stocks. Follow your daily gains and losses.
- 14. What percent of the daily newspaper is made up of classified ails? Sports? Comirs?
- 15. Find the percent of marriages that end in divorce, based on weekly averages. Create graphs showing the number of matriages and divorces per day or week.



- 16. What pericul of babies born each week are boys, acrouling to the local newspapes?
- 17. Figure the rost of advertised items bought on the installment plan. Remember to include your state sales tax. How much interest will be added to the original price?
- 18. Compare interest rates shown in newspaper ads for banks and for savings and loan associations. Consider how often the interest is compounded. Decide where you would deposit your money to get the best return on your investment.
- 19. Have groups of four to six students planta business venture. Determine what the business will be and prepare the first year's budget, using your newspaper to find costs for real estate, supplies, equipment, salaries, advertising, taxes. Estimate the yearly profit.



Newspaper in Education (NIE) Program

Much of the impetus for using newspapers in the classroom has come from the Newspaper in Education (NIE) programs sponsored by the American Newspaper Publishers Association (ANPA). Approximately 500 newspapers in the United States and Canada participate in NIE. An estimated 30 million copies of newspapers are used in classrooms each year. Nearly two-thirds of the NIE newspaper publishers charge schools one-half of the regular newsstand price. The remainder provide the newspapers free of charge.

Many of the NIE programs offer such teaching aids as activity sheets, filmstrips, sample lesson plans, and others. Approximately 60% of the newspapers provide these materials free, Also, 75% of the newspapers offer teacher workshops ranging from a half day to one or more weeks. These are often conducted in cooperation with a local college or university.



Recommended Resources

Bibliography: Newspaper in Education Publications.

A guide to more than 100 carefully selected, practical teacher guides and curriculum materials to aid the classroom use of newspapers. Source: Single topies fire from ANPA Foundation, P.O. Box 17407, Dulles International Airport, Washington, DC 20041.

Lindocr. Joy. Newspaper Learning Package (1971).

Contains activity sheets allowing students to work independently with the newspaper. Well-organized. Aimed at skill development. Grades 4 through 12, 30 pages. Price \$1, Source: The Wenarchee World, P.O. Box 1511, Wenarchee, WA 98801, Attn. Greedation Director.

Mattia, Christine, Newspapers: A Lifeshills Tool (1979).

Designed to introduce children to survival and competency skills. Good variety of activities using the newspaper. Contains worksheets, including a job application form. Grades 4through 9, 16 pages. Single copy free, Source: Post Publishing Co., 410 State Street, Bridgeport, CT 06602, Ann. Educational Services NIE Coordinator.

Newspaper in the Classroom Teacher's Manual (1978).

Activities related to sensitivity, creativity, life skills, and critical thinking. Includes lesson plans, Grades 4 through 12, 64 pages. Single copy free. Source: Post-Courier Newspapers, Post-Courier Bldg., Suite 100, 6296 Rivers Ave., North Charleston, SC 29405, Aun. Director, Educational Services.

Piercey, Dorothy, ed. So You Want to Put Out a Class Newspaper (1976).

Covers organization of the newspaper, various types of classroom newspapers, and instructions for assembling a staff and assigning duties, Grades K through 12, 17 pages, Price \$.50, Source: The Arizona Republic/The Phoenix Gazette, P.O. Box 1950, Phoenix, AZ 85001, Attn. Educational Services Coordinator.

Read All About It: A Student Guide to the Newspaper (Revised, 1978).

Organization of the newspaper, how it is created from start to finish, and the role of the press. Grades 7 through 12, 24 pages. Single copy (rec. Source:



 Indianapolis Vae and News, P.O. Box 145, Indianapolis, IN 46206, Ann. NIE Goodmann.

Slater, Colleen. Math Activities (1978).

Interesting activities to teach math concepts, consumer math, metrics, graphs, fractions, ratios, decimals, and geometry, Grades K through 12, 20 pages. Price \$1. Source: Truson Newspapers Inc., 4850 Park Avenue, Truson, AZ 85726, Atm. NIE Goodfnator.

Strobo, Daniel F. Sewspapers Make Math Meaningful (1976).

New spaper activities are marched to specific objectives in teaching math, Includes chapters on algebra, geometry, and consumer education. Grades 7 through 12, 28 pages. Price \$.50. Source: St. Lords Post Dispatch. St. Lords Clobe-Democrat, 900 North 12th Boulevard, St. Lords, MO 63101, Arth. N1E. Condinator.

Ware, Inez Macie. Publishing a Newspaper in Elementary Schools (1974).
Simple instructions on how students can publish their own newspaper.
Grades 1 through 9, 16 pages, Single copy bee, Source: Bullalo Comier Express, 787 Main Succe. Bullalo, NY 11240, Aun. NIF, Goordinano.

Wilson, Robert M., and Barnes, Marcia M. Using Newspupers to Tench Rending Skills (1975).

Especially for educators planning a reading curriculum, Assesses how newspapers can be used to reach 43 reading skills at the primary, intermediate, and secondary levels, 52 pages, Price \$1. Source: ANPA Foundation, Box 17407, Dulles International Airport, Washington, DC 20041, Arm. Educational Services Dept.



Fastback Titles (Continued from back cover)

96. Some Practical Laws of Learning

97. Reading 1967-1977: A Decade of Change and Promise.

98. The Future of Teacher Power in America

99. Collective Bargaining in the Public Schools

100. How to Individualize Learning

101. Winchester: A Community School for the Urbanvantaged

102. Affective Education in Philadelphia 103. Teaching with Film 104. Carear Education: An Open Door Policy 105. The Good Mind

106. Law in the Curriculum

107. Fostering a Pluralistic Society Through Multi-Elhnic Education

108. Education and the Brain 109. Bonding: The First Basic in Education

110. Selecting Instructional Materials 111. Teacher Improvement Through Clinical

Supervision 112. Places and Spaces: Environmental Psychology in Education

113. Artists as Teachers 114. Using Role Playing in the Classroom 115. Management by Objectives in the Schools

116. Declining Enrollments: A New Dilemma for Educators

117. Teacher Conters-Where, What, Why?

118. The Case for Competency-Based Education

119. Teaching the Difted and Talented 120. Parents Have Rights. Too!

121. Student Discipline and the Law

122. British Schools and Ours

123. Church-State Issues in Education 124. Mainstreamins: Merging Regular and Special Éducation

125. Early Field Experiences in Teacher Education

126. Student and Teacher Absenteeism

127. Writing Centers in the Elementary School

128. A Paimer on Piaget

129. The Restoration of Standards: The Modesto Plan 130 Dealing with Stress: A Challenge for Educators

131. Futuristics and Education

132. How Parent-Teacher Conferences Build Partnerships

133. Early Childhood Education: Foundations for Lifelonz Learning

134. Teaching about the Creation/Evolution Controversy

135. Performance Evaluation of Educational Personnel

136. Writing for Education Journals

137. Minimum Competency Testing

138. Legal (mplications of Minimum Competency

139. Energy Education: Goals and Practicas 140. Education in West Germany: A Quest for

Excellence 141 Magnet Schools: An Approach to Voluntary

Desegregation 142. Intercultural Education

143. The Process of Orant Proposal Development

144. Citizenship and Consumer Education: Key Assumptions and Basic Competencies

145. Migrant Education: Teaching the Wandering Ones

146. Controversial Issues in Our Schools 147. Mutrition and Learning

148. Education in the USSR

149. Teaching with Newspapers: The Living

150. Population. Education, and Children's Futures 151. Bibliotherapy: The Right Book at the Right Time

152. Educational Planning for Educational Success

This lastback and others in the series are made available at low cost through the Phi Delta Kappa Educational Foundation, established in 1966 with a bequest from George H. Reavis. The foundation exists to promote a better understanding of the nature of the educative process and the relation of education to human welfare.

Single copies of fastbacks are 75¢ (60¢ to Phi Delta Kappa members).

Quantity discounts for any title or combination of titles are:

Number of Copies	Nonmember Price	Member Price
10— 24	48¢/copy	45¢/co₽v
25 99	45¢/copy	42¢/copy
100—499	42¢/copy	39¢/copy
500999	39¢/copy	36¢/coPy
1,000 or more	364/copy	33¢/copy

Prices are subject to change without notice.

A \$1 handling fee will be charged on orders under \$5 if payment is not enclosed. Indiana sidents add 4% sales tax. rder from PHI DELTA KAPPA, Eighth and Union, Box 789, Bloomington, IN 47402.

PDK Fastback Series Titles

- 1. Schools Wilhout Property Taxes: Hope or Illusion?
- 2. The Best Kept Secret of the Past 5,000 Years: Womes Ara Ready for Leedership in Education
- 3. Open Education: Promise and Problems 4. Performance Contracting: Who Profits Most?
- *5. Too Many Teachers: Fact or Fiction?
- 6. How Schools Can Apply Systems Analysis
- 7. Busing: A Moral Issue
- 8. Discipling or Disaster? 9. Learning Systems for the Future
- LO. Who Should Bo to College?
- IL. Afternative Schools in Action
- 12. What Do Students Really Want? 13. What Should the Schools Teach?
- L4. How to Achieve Accountability in the Public
- 15. Headed: A New Kind Of Teacher
- 16. Information Sources and Services is Education
- 17. Systematic Thinking about Education
- 18. Selecting Children's Reading 19. Sex Differences in Learning to Read
- 20. Is Creativity Teachable? 21. Teachers and Politics
- 22. The Middle School: Whence? What? Whither?
- 23. Pablish: Don't Perish 24. Education for a New Society
- 25. The Crisis in Education is Detaide the Classroom 26. The Teacher and the Drug Scena
- *27. The Liveliest Seminar in Town
- 28. Education for a Global Sociaty
- 29. Can Intelligence Ba Taught?
- 30. How to Recognize a Good School
- 31. In Between: The Adolescent's Struggle for Independence
- 32. Effective Teaching in the Desegregated School
- 33. The Art of Followership (What Happeard to the Indians?)
- 34. Leaders Live with Crises
- 35. Marshalling Community Leadership to Support the Public Schools
- 36. Preparing Educational Leaders: New Challenges and New Perspectives
- 37. General Education: The Search for a Rationale
- 38. The Humana Leader
- 39. Parliamentary Procedure: Tool of Leadership.
- 40. Aphorisms on Education
- 41. Metrication, American Style
- 42. Optional Alternative Public Schools 43. Motivation and learning in School
- 44. Informal Learning

Full Text Provided by ERIC

- 45. Learning Without a Teacher
- 46. Violence in the Schools: Causes and Remedies
- 47. The School's Responsibility for Sex Education 48. Three Views of Competency-Based Teacher Education: I Theory
- 49. Three Views of Competency-Based Tascher Education: If University of Houston
 - Three Views of Competency-Based Teacher lucation: Ill University of Nebraska

- 51. A University for the World: The United Nations Plan
- 52. Dikos, the Environment and Education 53. Transpersonal Psychology in Education
- 54. Simulation Games for the Classroom 55. School Volenteers: Who Needs Them?
- 56. Equity in School Financing: Fall State Funding
- 57. Equity in School Financine: District Power Equalizing
- 58. The Computer in the School
- 59. The Legal Rights of Students
- 60. The Word Game: Improving Communications
- 61. Planning the Rest of Your Life 62. The People and Their Schools: Community
- Participation
- 63. The Battle of the Books: Kanawha Coanty 64. The Community as Textbook
- 65. Students Teach Stadeats
- 66. The Pros and Cons of Ability Grouping
- 67. A Conservative Alternative School: The A> School in Cupartina
- 68. How Much Are Oar Young People Learning? The Story of the National Assessment
- 69. Diversity in Higher Education: Reform in the Colleges
- 70. Dramatics in the Classroom: Making Lassons Come Aliva
- 71. Teacher Centers and Inservice Education
- 72. Alternatives to Growth: Education for a Stable Society
- 73. Thomas Jefferson and the Education of a New Nation
- 74. Three Early Champions of Education: Benjamin Franklin, Benjamin Rash, and Noah Webster
- 75. A History of Compulsory Education Laws
- 76. The American Teacher: 1776-1976
- 77. The Urban School Superintendency: A Century and a Half of Change
- 78. Private Schools: From the Puritans to the Present
- 79. The People and Their Schools
- 80. Schools of the Pest: A Treasury of Photographs
- 81. Sexism: New Issas in Americas Education
- 82. Compaters in the Curriculum 83. The Legal Rights of Teachers
- 84. Learning in Two Languages
- 84S. Learning in Two Languages (Spanish edition)
- 85. Getting It All Together: Confluent Education
- 86. Silent Language in the Classroom 87. Multiethnic Education: Practices and Promises
- 88. How & School Board Operates
- 89. What Can We Learn from the Schools of China? 90. Education in Soath Africa
- 91. What I've Learned About Values Education
- 92. The Abuses of Standardized Testing 93. The Uses of Steedardized Testing
- 94. What the People Think About Their Schools: Gallup's Findings
- 95. Defining the Basics of American Education (Continued on inside back cover)

See inside back cover for prices.